
Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes October 4, 2010 1 
 

POLSON CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
CITY HALL – CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 4TH, 2010, 6:30 P.M. 
 
ATTENDANCE:  City Commissioners:  Ron Boyce, John Campbell, Judy Preston, Mike 
Lies, and Elsa Duford.  Mayor Pat DeVries presiding.  Commissioner Fred Funke absent.  
City Manager Todd Crossett and City Attorney James Raymond present.  Others Present:  
Joan Hart, Cort Potter, Ric Smith, Ken Siler, Ron Hone, Bonnie Hone, Barb LaPiana, 
Connie Brownel, Marilyn Trosper, Rick LaPiana, Sharon Finney, Wayne Finney, Tom 
Ryan, Larry Ashcraft, Helen Raunig, Jerry Raunig, Dennis Duty, Bob Blakely, Carol 
Blakely, Cindy Deushel, Jill Southerland, Rick Dunshee, Carol Jones, Laura Hone, Rory 
Horning, John Starner, Dan Yonkin, John Hart, Karen Sargeant, Terry Gembala, Bill 
Smith, Doug Chase, John Stevens, Murat Kalinyaprak, Terry Sordal, Ardrene Sarracino 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order, and the Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited. 
 
APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA:  Mayor DeVries noted that presenter Charlene 
Lefthand was ill and requested that agenda item #8 be moved to the next meeting.  She had also 
discussed tabling agenda item #9 with Jeff Andrews until the details could be worked out.  
Commissioner Campbell moved to approve the proposed agenda, with the removal of 
agenda item #8-handicapped parking and access, and item #9-additional handicapped 
parking spaces along 1st Street East.  Commissioner Boyce seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried unanimously.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDENT TO BUDGET:  Mayor DeVries noted that several 
expenditure lines in the sewer fund had been overlooked and had been left with no budgeted 
amounts.  She opened up the public hearing for public comment.   
Ric Smith encouraged the Commissioners to vote against the prior amendments to the budget.  
He felt that at the September 8th Commission meeting the amended motion that took place was 
an ambush vote. The Commissioners should have spoken to department heads and the City 
Manager about concerns they had about the budget, but that did not occur.  It was not leadership, 
and it was not the Commission’s job to micromanage the City Manager or department heads.  He 
cited the incorrect budget information that had been included in the motion, expenditures that 
had been $22,389 under spent, not overspent.   He noted several accounts of the payroll budgets 
that had also been significantly under spent.  He expressed that the department heads were doing 
an excellent job.  The Commission should not be second guessing the police department’s ability 
to gauge an emergency.  Sending out two officers was often far safer for both the police and the 
civilians.  He urged the Commissioners to make a new motion repealing the amendments.   
Ken Avison commented that as a home and small business owner in Polson, any time he called 
for police help, for any reason, it was an emergency to him.  The same for the water and sewer 
department.  Regardless of what he called about, he appreciated the help he got and he expected 
it. 
Jeremy Morgret pointed out that the Commissioners were elected to represent the City, and the 
large showing of people at the meeting tonight was representative of how the City felt. 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes October 4, 2010 2 
 

Rory Horning commented that he was glad to see all the people at the meeting, especially that 
some of those who formerly sat on the Council who were now in audience.  He was glad 
everyone was all worried about where the money was being spent.  He expressed his beleif that it 
was the first time they’d had that kind of turn out for the Commission doing their job, and doing 
the job they can manage.  He commented sarcastically that he was very impressed with those 
who thought they knew the whole story, but did not know the whole story.  He expressed his 
encouragement of the Commissioners to save money and they were elected by the City to make 
that choice.  He claimed that on the 21st of December the former commission had extended the 
City Manager contract by 6 months in a private meeting, closed to the public.  He felt there were 
a number of things that had not been brought out to the public.  He commented that the City 
Charter had never been ratified, and had never been brought before the public and there were 
things changed that contributed to the expense of the budget.  He said the current Commission 
had been judicious about saving money, particularly $750,000 for a wastewater building.  He 
told the Commission they were doing a great job and not to change their vote if they did not 
want.  
John Starner expressed his agreement with Ric Smith.  He felt that you cannot micromanage in a 
business.  If you appoint someone to a position, you must have the confidence that they will do 
their job.  The Police Chief had done an excellent job, and if you were going to make changes to 
someone’s department they need to be consulted.  He noted instances when overtime would be 
required, but not an emergency.  For some situations having a single employee remain on shift in 
overtime rather than pull in a new employee to shift the work you spent more on the transition 
that the overtime.  He felt that both the Police Chief and the City Manager were doing a great 
job.  He added that the parks in the City looked better than he had ever seen them, and the parks 
employees were doing a great job.   
Bill Barron commented that all law enforcement budgets contained a lot of overtime, and there 
was an immediate need for it.  Not all overtime is the result of an emergency, a great deal of it 
results from training.  Most lawsuits against law enforcement agencies were the result of a lack 
of training.  He expressed that Doug Chase was a fantastic administrator and a great leader.  He 
believed that Mr. Chase was frugal and only spent what he had to.  Every school states that 
overtime is critical for law enforcement departments.  He urged the Commissioners to change 
their previous vote on overtime. 
Dan Yonkin expressed what a great job the Polson Police Department had done to make Polson a 
nice place to live.  He felt that everyone was appreciative of the work they had done.  He 
expressed concern that a quick budget fix would unravel the progress the department had made 
to save a few dollars.  He felt the City was very fortunate to have Doug Chase.  He asked that the 
Commission reconsider the overtime issue. 
Maggie Plummer expressed her agreement with Ric Smith.  She felt that Doug Chase was the 
best and most proactive Chief the community had since she moved to the area in the 1970’s.  As 
a journalist she had worked with many law enforcement agents, and she trusted none like she 
trusted Doug Chase.  She asked that they don’t allow Commission Lies and his cohorts make 
Police Chief Chase feel that he has no choice but to resign.  If the Chief says he needs to be able 
to utilize overtime, than it was true.  She expressed her admiration for Karen Sargeant as Parks 
Superintendent as well.  She urged the Commissioners to give the parks department woefully 
underpaid employees the small raise that had been requested.   
The public hearing closed at 7:00 p.m. 
 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes October 4, 2010 3 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

A.  CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES SEPTEMBER 20, 2010  
B.  SEPTEMBER 16-30 CLAIMS 

Commissioner Preston moved to approve the consent agenda items A and B, with spelling 
corrections to item A, seconded by Commissioner Campbell.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  City Manager Crossett advised the Commissioners that he 
had been working with the library board on how to move forward with the library transition to an 
independently funded and operated Library District.  The land was donated for the purpose of a 
library, and the building had been donated and held in the City’s trust until such a time that they 
were an autonomous entity.  He said that on an upcoming agenda the Commissioners would need 
to decide on the terms of the repayment, and then following, to approve a memorandum of 
understanding for key agreements relative to the transition process.   
The Parks department was continuing to have success for the recycling program within the City 
departments and with the local schools.  The recyclables they were bringing in each week was 
greater than anticipated. 
The TIGER grant project was progressing, currently the environmental document and 
engineering were being completed.  The TOC was leaning toward a design build vs design bid 
build.  There was a sense of urgency to commit the funds, as there was a movement in 
Washington D.C. to take back uncommitted grant funds.   
Main Street was on week 8 of construction.  Last week they have paved down to 4th Avenue.  
They were working on paving and hoping to get the ADA ramps completed while the weather 
was cooperating.  They were working towards getting the first two paved blocks back open to 
alleviate the blockage as soon as possible.  Pedestrian access to Main Street had been cut off due 
to an extreme safety hazard and he was very concerned about public safety.  They were moving 
forward to paving the next blocks as fast as they could.   
He mentioned that the City had an appropriations request in Congress for 16 million, which they 
likely wouldn’t get the majority of, for storm water, engineering for wastewater treatment, and 
4th Avenue.  Water quality was a big issue for the government.  He wondered if the Commission 
was interested in sending a representative to do a follow up and lobby for the funds.  He had 
been working with representatives for both Montana Senators, and had met up with them in 
Butte.  He added that it would be worth the $2,000 expense if they got $50,000 in appropriations.  
Commission Campbell agreed that storm drain projects had a lot of pull for cleaning up the bay. 
 
The City Manager clarified that his contract went from June 15, 2009 to June 15, 2011 and had 
never been extended.   
 
SECOND READING – ORDINANCE #659 – REPEAL ORDINANCES #622 & #344 
STREET BOND REQUIREMENT $2,500 CD FOR 3 YEARS – REPLACE WITH 
PERMIT FOR STREET & ALLEY CUTS:  Mayor DeVries noted that she was in favor of the 
ordinance with a three tier charge system for permits, and not a flat fee.  $200 for gravel, $400 
for old asphalt, and $1,500 for cutting into new development.  Commissioner Lies agreed a 
higher price was needed on newer developments.  Street Superintendent Gembala expressed his 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes October 4, 2010 4 
 

agreement with the three tier prices.  He added that they have a difficult time collecting money 
on bonds, and issuing the permit fees would give them money to repair as needed.  
Commissioner Duford wondered if $1,500 was enough for the new developments and who 
ensured that streets were sufficiently repaired.  Street Superintendent Gembala replied that it was 
up to the street department to ensure the cuts are properly repaired.  Commissioner Preston 
moved to approve Ordinance #659, permit for street and alley cuts, with the charges for 
gravel being $200, old asphalt being $400, and new developments $1,500.  Commissioner 
Boyce seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
AMEND RESOLUTION #1016 – FINAL BUDGET:  City Manager Crossett advised that the 
City staff was asking for the omitted sewer fund additions to be approved.  Mayor DeVries asked 
that any motions for the budget be separate with individual votes.  Commissioner Campbell 
moved to approve the sewer budget as presented, seconded by Commissioner Preston.  The 
motion carried unanimously.  Commissioner Lies moved to remove the overtime provision 
from the budget, seconded by Commissioner Preston.  Commissioner Duford felt that the 
original overtime provision may have been misunderstood and led to an overreaction.  Any 
situation the police were needed could be seen as an emergency.  Mayor DeVries advised that 
this motion would put back in place overtime as the Police Chief had proposed, which could 
include overtime for training, which would not be an emergency.  Commissioner Boyce 
commented that he did not like to be given ultimatums, but he did not feel 7 people with 
different opinions should be making those decisions.  He believed that overtime issues and pay 
raises were the City Managers decision, if he remains under budget.  He felt all the amendments 
to resolution 1016 should be rescinded.  Terry Sordal commented that the Police Chief should 
decide what was needed for overtime.  The motion carried unanimously.  Commissioner 
Boyce moved to reinstate all proposed pay raises, seconded by Commissioner Preston.  
Commissioner Duford felt that all of employees should be given a raise, or given none.  Giving 
some people raises posed a problem.  She added that the payroll information had not been given 
to them enough ahead of time and questioned rushing to a decision.  Mayor DeVries pointed out 
that the payroll information had been given to the Commissioners at the public hearing, which 
had been two weeks prior to the vote for the budget resolution.  Commissioner Boyce 
commended City Manager Crossett for trying to equalize the pay scale.  He had noticed that 
some employees had been left behind.  He pointed out that one position in the general fund had 
not been filled after an employee retired, and the City Manager had requested some raises 
without raising the budget.  He would not have agreed to the raises if the budget had been raised.  
Commissioner Lies pointed out that the general fund had never been as low as it currently was, 
and money had been overspent somewhere.  Commissioner Campbell noted that much of the 
money had not been received from taxes, not necessarily over spent.  Commissioner Lies 
commented that they needed to tighten their belts; the state of the general fund was pathetic.  
John Starner inquired if any employees thought they would be receiving the raises.  Mayor 
DeVries advised that two employees had been promoted to new positions and thought they 
would be, but all of the employees knew they were proposed.  City Manager Crossett advised 
that the best example was the street department head, who had replaced a retiree at a wage about 
$3 less/hour.  After the budget amendments were made his pay had been reduced by have of his 
increase.  Rick Smith urged the Commissioners to approve the motion.  He added that in all 
businesses some employees were given raises when others were not, and the decision should be 
left up to the City Manager and department heads.  Mayor DeVries noted that they were having a 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes October 4, 2010 5 
 

cash issue, not a budget issue.  They had cut some revenue projections out of the budget.  Tax 
revenue that had not been received would eventually come in but maybe not in the same fiscal 
year.  Parks Superintendent Sargeant comment that last year City Manager Crossett had gone to 
all of the department heads in the general fund and asked them to cut their expenditures.  Every 
general fund department had done so, stepping up and cutting their expenses.  City Manager 
Crossett noted that FY09-10’s budget authority had been under spent by about $100,000.  He 
noted there were several factors that had caused the City’s reserve to shrink over the past four 
years, including $150,000 lost on the Westana Project, declining building fees, and unpaid/un-
received taxes. The reserve currently stands at about $400,000.  He advised that they were 
looking at different options for bridging any gap in cash flow before the first 2010 tax receipts 
come in.  He also pointed out that millions of dollars had been brought to the City in the last year 
due to grants.  Mayor DeVries noted that HB 124 revenue would be reflected in the September 
cash report.  Ken Avison commented that if there was the money to facilitate the raises, they 
should vote in favor of the motion.  City Manager Crossett advised that the budget would work 
either way, they built the budget around not increasing expenditures.  The difference in payroll 
for all departments, not just general fund, would be about a $200 increase per month.  He added 
that they knew budgets were tight, they had decreased the amount of personnel while increasing 
the workload.  Many positions had been re-engineered with increased responsibilities.  When he 
had been hired he had be tasked with correcting the pay scale, and that’s what he was working 
towards.  Commissioner Campbell expressed that the parks department seasonals raises had not 
been included in the handouts for the budget resolution.  City Manager Crossett expressed his 
apology and explained that it was unintentional for them not to be included.  They did not show 
up on the report because they were not permanent employees and it had not been noticed that 
they were not included until after the meeting.  John Starner advised against squelching the 
expectation of good people that work at the City.  He added that in all his years of running a 
business he had never reduced a wage after an employee had received it or was expecting it.  He 
pointed out that if they wanted the best out of their employees they should approve the motion.  
City Manager Crossett noted that the street department employees had worked with only 2 staff 
for four months at his request, and the total reduction from the previous three was $10/hour for 
the department.  Jeremy Morget expressed that they were facing a serious challenge.  He asked if 
they trust their leadership.  The budget was balanced, and the City Manager was working on the 
cash flow issues.  He pointed out the support City Manager Crossett had from the employees of 
the City, and that was leadership.  Commissioner Duford inquired about hepatitis B shots for 
parks employees.  Parks Superintendent Sargeant replied that permanent employees were given 
them.  They were not required, but she felt it would be beneficial if there were funds available 
seasonal to have the vaccinations as well.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
FIRST READING – ORDINANCE #660 – TO AUTHORIZE FIRE DEPARTMENT TO 
BILL INSURANCE FOR INCIDENT REPORT RESPONSE:  City Attorney James 
Raymond advised that the ordinance would allow for the City to bill for motor vehicle incidents 
that the fire department responds.  Ronan had a similar ordinance in place.  There were a number 
of firms the City could contract to undertake the billing and collection.  City Manager Crossett 
advised that the ordinance would not apply to fire responses, only motor vehicle incidents.  The 
billing would allow for offsetting the cost of going out on the runs, particularly for those who did 
not reside in Polson and did not pay taxes in the area to fund the department.  He noted that most 
insurance carriers have the coverage already included in auto insurance.  Residents of Polson 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes October 4, 2010 6 
 

would not be included.  Commissioner Preston inquired why residents would be excluded.  City 
Attorney Raymond advised that property tax payers already paid into emergency response 
services for the area.  Mayor DeVries suggested excluding all tax payers, rather than residents.  
City Manager Crossett advised the rural fire district was considering excluding all property tax 
payers as well.  Assistant Police Chief John Stevens went over when the City used to charge for 
using the Jaws of Life.  He admitted that without the ordinance authority it was difficult to 
collect on such charges.  City Manager Crossett commended the idea, which was being utilized 
in many communities successfully.  Commissioner Preston inquired how fault would be deduced 
for the charges.  Commissioner Campbell responded that the insurance companies involved 
would be determining the fault.  City Manager Crossett agreed, adding that the contracted 
collector would then bill the appropriate agency.  He advised that the Fire Chief would like any 
funds received put into a capital projects reserve fund.  Commissioner Boyce expressed 
apprehension for the idea, adding that he hoped they could take care of their neighbors.  If he 
were in an accident outside of Polson those emergency responders would also help him.  He 
added that Polson welcomed non-residents, tourism was a great source of income.  
Commissioner Duford expressed concerns over the billing service.  City Attorney Raymond 
advised that the City would not be deciding fault.  Commissioner Campbell suggested the City 
hold off on passing the ordinance until they would work with the rural fire department to make a 
mutually beneficial agreement.  City Manager Crossett and Mayor Devries expressed their 
agreement.  City Manager Crossett noted that the ladder truck was the most immediate need for 
replacement should they get the funds together.     Commissioner Preston moved to table 
Ordinance #660 so that the Rural Fire Board could be involved, seconded by 
Commissioner Lies.  Rory Horning advised caution against starting a series of charges.  He 
expressed opposition to hiring out a contractor to do the billing.  Lee Manicke commented that 
the charges were long overdue, since the people in the vehicle accidents were not typically those 
that paid into the taxes for the services.  He felt that everyone appreciated the fire department’s 
response, but those that incur the costs should be the ones that paid for it.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
AUGUST 2010 CASH REPORT:  City Treasurer Bonnie Manicke advised that the general 
fund cash balance was $18,760.30 as of August 31, 2010.  She noted there was a cash balance 
issue.  There was an anticipated $151,000 of revenue for the month of September, but payroll ran 
at about $139,000 and the expenditures ranged about $30,000.  There was $130,000 in 
delinquent taxes remaining for the 08-09 year.  The anticipated tax revenue for the year was 
$1,101,709, half of which would be received in November.  Building activity had picked up in 
the City, and she suspected that it would increase.  The final debt service payment of $64,095 
had been paid for the 20 golf carts.  She expected a request for another series of carts around the 
spring time. The total cash balance for the City of Polson as of August 31, 2010 was 
$6,220,032.70.  Commissioner Lies moved to approve the August 2010 cash report as 
presented, seconded by Commissioner Boyce.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANT INTEREST TO THE PUBLIC 
NOT ON THE AGENDA:  Rory Horning commented that despite coming before the 
Commissioners with Streetscape issues, he was still having issues and his property was blocked.  
Edgewater Realty had no alley access and all parking in front of the building was being blocked 
by equipment.  He felt that his street was being blocked more so than other streets on the project.  



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes October 4, 2010 7 
 

He questioned what the parking lot across Main from his street was being used for.  He 
commented that the landscaping and irrigation at Edgewater Realty had also been torn out.  He 
claimed that the City Manager was not working on Fridays and expressed his disapproval.  He 
directed attention to the City Manager contract and accused the former Commission of approving 
an extension 10 days before the new Commissioners took their seats.  He hoped that wasn’t the 
reason he was ejected from a meeting.  He encouraged them to look over the contract and 
commented on the wages for the position.  Commissioner Boyce advised against discussing 
employee performance.   
Murat Kalinyaprak commented, in reference to the Commission being referred to as an ambush, 
that this Commission was the most open and willing to spend time to talk about issues that he 
had ever seen.  He felt that when the Commissioners were open, employees were not.  He said 
that even if he did not agree with the decisions tonight, he was glad to see that the public had 
influenced the Commission’s decision.  Though he felt that the people tonight had intimidated 
the Commission, they were mostly from Rotary and Mission Bay.  He felt the City Manager’s 
job had been done by the Commissioners and the public, like with the Tamsco building.  He 
accused the employees of withholding information on that building as well as the well property.  
He added that he hopes the manager does well, but that if he doesn’t he would be there to 
highlight what he viewed as failures.  
Commissioner Preston expressed a response to the letter written from the Chamber of 
Commerce.  She thanked them for their comments, adding that she appreciated the involvement 
of the public and different perspectives.  She pointed out that every issue has two sides, and that 
as a new Commissioner she had a steep learning curve.  She felt that all of the Commissioners 
had the best interest of the people of Polson at heart.  She could think of a couple occasions 
where employees may have felt ambushed, but she saw opportunity in the lessons they learned 
from the experiences.  She wished to build trust and be part of a transparent government.   
Ric Smith commented that he appreciated her comments and looked forward to the Commission 
moving forward.  In response to Mr. Kalinyaprak being in favor of transparency it was wrong to 
think that Mission Bay residents should not be allowed to speak or business owners.   
Commission Boyce advised that this was his last meeting, and it was not because he did like the 
job.  He would be moving out of his ward shortly and could not serve in the position at that time.  
He felt that he was really beginning to understand the governmental position and working with 
the City Manager.   He expressed a desire to see the parks become a greater attraction for Polson.  
He pushed for street festivals, music at the natural amphitheater at Riverside Park, and great 
Christmas light displays.  He felt that musical events helped bring a community together.  He 
added that this may be the best Commission you ever see, and he hoped that whoever was 
appointed to replace him would push for the same.  He thanked the public for their support. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 
 

__________________________________________ 
Mayor Pat DeVries      

__________________________________ 
Attest:  Kala Parker, City Clerk 


